## REGISTER OF ENTERPRISE AGREEMENTS

ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT NO: EA06/79

## <u>TITLE:</u> <u>Collex Pty Ltd Domestic Collections - NSW Divisional Agreement 2005-2008</u>

**I.R.C. NO:** IRC6/544

**DATE APPROVED/COMMENCEMENT:** 15 February 2006 / 15 September 2005

**TERM:** 36

**NEW AGREEMENT OR** 

**VARIATION:** New.

**GAZETTAL REFERENCE:** 3 March 2006

**DATE TERMINATED:** 

**NUMBER OF PAGES:** 13

#### COVERAGE/DESCRIPTION OF

**EMPLOYEES:** The agreement applies to all employees employed by Collex Pty Ltd, located at 65 Pirrama Road, Pyrmont NSW 2009, who are operating in Randwick, Botany, Wollahra and City of Sydney Domestic Waste Collection Contracts, who fall within the coverage of the Transport Industry - Waste Collection and Recycling (State) Award.

PARTIES: Collex Pty Ltd -&- the Transport Workers' Union of New South Wales

# COLLEX PTY LTD DOMESTIC WASTE COLLECTION - NSW DIVISION 2005 DIVISIONAL AGREEMENT

## **Contents**

1.	TITLE	2		
2.	PARTIES BOUND	2		
3.	APPLICATION	2		
4.	INTENTION OF AGREEMENT	2		
5.	DEFINITIONS	3		
6.	COMMITMENT	3		
7.	MEASURES TO INCREASE EFFICIENCY AND PRODUCTIVITY	3		
8.	CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT	3		
9.	RATES OF REMUNERATION FOR EMPLOYEE TRANSPORT WO	RKERS 6		
10.	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES	6		
11	MEAL ALLOWANCE	7		
12	OPERATION OF THIS AGREEMENT	7		
13	VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICY	7		
14	DISCIPLINARY ACTION PROCEDURE	7		
15	<u>UNIFORMS</u>	8		
16	OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS	8		
17	CLOSED AGREEMENT	9		
18	EXECUTION	9		
APPENDIX 1				

APPENDIX 2 10

#### **TITLE**

This Agreement shall be known as the COLLEX PTY LTD DOMESTIC COLLECTIONS-NSW DIVISIONAL AGREEMENT 2005-2008

#### 1. PARTIES BOUND

The parties to this Agreement are:

<u>COLLEX PTY LTD</u> of Level 4, 65 Pirrama Road, Pyrmont in the State of New South Wales (hereinafter referred to as "the Company") of the one part;

#### AND

THE TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF AUSTRALIA (NSW BRANCH) of 31 Cowper Street, Parramatta in the said State (hereinafter referred to as "the TWU") for and on behalf of employees of Collex Pty Ltd covered by this Agreement.

#### 2. APPLICATION

2.1 This Agreement covers all employees of Collex Pty Ltd operating in Randwick, Rockdale, Botany, Woollahra and City of Sydney Domestic Waste Collection Contracts and who are employed under classifications contained in the *Transport Industry – Waste Collection and Recycling (State) Award.* 

This agreement shall be read and interpreted wholly in conjunction with the *Transport Industry – Waste Collection and Recycling (State) Award* as varied *and the Collex Pty Ltd New South Wales (State) Agreement 2005*, provided that where there is any inconsistency between this agreement and the Award, this agreement shall take precedence to the extent of the inconsistency.

This agreement supersedes all previous agreements unless such Agreements are specifically detailed in the Appendices to this Heads of Agreement.

- (i) Regardless of any proposed changes that may affect the enforceability of this Agreement, it is the clear intention of both parties to abide by the conditions of this Agreement until its expiration.
- (ii) Where such changes may clearly deem any provisions of this Agreement to be unlawful, the parties agree to maintain such provisions of this Agreement that are deemed to remain lawful unless otherwise negotiated.

#### **LABOUR HIRE AGENCIES**

2.2 The Company agrees to only engage labour hire companies that have a current NSWIRC registered enterprise agreement with the TWU. Notwithstanding, such companies will be obliged to pay the rates contained in this agreement to those employees. The union agrees to provide a list of such companies to Collex within three months of the signing of this agreement.

#### 3. INTENTION OF AGREEMENT

- (i) To secure an income for the Company's employees in excess of award provisions in return for the best possible productivity levels.
- (ii) To provide the framework to ensure that employees are rewarded for meeting the service delivery targets set by the company.
- (iii) To provide security for Collex and its employees.

#### 4. **DEFINITIONS**

"Award" means Transport Industry - Waste Collection and Recycling (State) Award as varied from time to time.

"Employee" means all workers employed by Collex under this Agreement and who are covered by the classifications referred to in the *Transport Industry – Waste Collection and Recycling (State) Award.* 

"Transport Worker" Means any employee whose work is covered by this Agreement, and includes transport workers employed by other organisations such as casual labour hire companies engaged in providing the services covered by this agreement.

"TWU" means the Transport Workers' Union of Australia (NSW Branch).

"IRC" means the NSW Industrial Relations Commission.

In this Agreement:

Words importing the singular shall include the plural; and Words importing the male gender shall include the female gender.

## 5. COMMITMENT

By entering this Agreement the employees hereby makes a commitment to:

- Ensure that all activities so directed by the Company are carried out to the satisfaction of the Company, in line with the service expectations of customers of the company.
- Foster ongoing co-operation with management.
- Co-operate and participate fully in a programme of continuing workplace improvement.
- Participate in multiskilling where requested. This may include job rotation.
- Ensure all general workplace and contract specific requirements referred to in this Agreement are carried out to the satisfaction of the Company.
- Ensure all work practices are conducted in a safe and timely manner, in accordance with relevant Occupational Health and Safety Legislation as varied from time to time

By entering this Agreement the employer hereby makes a commitment to:

- The full-time engagement of its transport workers;
- Utilise full-time employees to their full capacity before casual or part-time employees are engaged
- Strongly recommend that all transport workers covered by the Agreement join the TWU, including positively promoting TWU membership at the point of recruitment;
- Positively support the continued integrity and relevance of the Award.
- The training of its transport workers in occupational health and safety and other professional training as provided by a licensed Blue Card Provider.
- Recognise its responsibility as a leading industry employer to the principles of the Chain of Responsibility legislation and will endeavour to ensure all contracts are consistent with its principles.

#### 6. MEASURES TO INCREASE EFFICIENCY AND PRODUCTIVITY

6.1 The parties agree that in order to develop an efficient, productive and competitive workplace it is necessary to create a cooperative and productive work environment with appropriate consultative mechanisms involving the company, the TWU and employees.

#### 7. CONDITIONS OF ENGAGEMENT

In relation to any matter in respect of which this Agreement does not make provision, the terms of the Award shall apply to all employees.

#### 7.1 Hours of Work

- 7.1.1 The ordinary hours of work shall be 40 hours per week, which shall be worked on the basis of an 8-hour day. Employees will be paid for 38 hours per week, or 7.6 hours per day with two hours being banked each week towards the Rostered Day off Accrual. For employees who do not currently have Rostered Days Off, the ordinary hours of work shall be 38 which shall be worked on the basis of a 7.6 hour day.
- 7.1.2 Employees engaged on garbage collections in the Rockdale Council domestic collection contracts will continue to be paid under the current DARG arrangement (i.e. 20c per collected bin, for all bins collected beyond 860 in Rockdale). The DARG arrangements will automatically be extinguished when current contracts are renewed or extended.
- **7.1.3** Employees engaged on the Randwick, Rockdale, Botany, Woollahra, and City of Sydney Council collection contracts will continue to function under the existing arrangements. The job and finish arrangements in the Randwick and Rockdale contracts will be automatically extinguished when current contracts are renewed or extended.
- **7.1.4** Employees engaged on the Rockdale and Randwick collection contracts will continue to function under the existing 'cut out' provisions.
- 7.1.5 For those who are currently entitled to RDO's, twelve Rostered Days off will be accumulated per full year of employment. One rostered day off will accrue every 4 weeks worked. Rostered days off will not accrue during annual leave periods. Rostered days off will be taken as full days off. Accrued rostered days off can be paid at the discretion of the employee. Accruals of greater than 10 rostered days off will automatically be paid out quarterly in March, June, September and December.
- **7.1.6** Hours of employment will be as per the Award.
- **7.1.7** The majority of employees will be expected to work their ordinary hours from Monday through Friday. Any alternative to this will be as per the Award.
- **7.1.8** Hours worked in excess of 8 hours on any day (or 7.6 hours for those employees who do not accrue rostered days off) will be paid as overtime at the rate of time and one half for the first two hours and double time thereafter.
- **7.1.9** Employees engaged on an incentive basis will continue to work overtime on an 'incentive or overtime whichever is the greater' arrangement.
- **7.1.10** Employees agree to work reasonable overtime.

## 7.2 Casual Employees

- 7.2.1 A casual employee shall be paid an hourly rate being 1/38th of the sum of the ordinary weekly wage rate prescribed by this agreement plus a 20% loading. This additional loading is deemed to include all amounts payable under the Annual Holidays Act 1944, "Disability allowance" and "In lieu of additional sick pay allowance" described in the Award.
- **7.2.2** Where possible a casual employee will be notified the previous day if required for work. This does not restrict the employer from notifying a casual employee of the requirement to work on the day they are required.

- **7.2.3** Casual employees will be paid only for those hours worked. A minimum payment of four hours shall be paid.
- **7.2.4** Where casual or other employees are engaged by labour agencies the wage rates contained in the Schedule of Rates to this Agreement shall continue to apply.
- **7.2.5** The employment status of casuals will be reviewed after their first 3 months of employment

#### 7.3 Weekend Work

7.3.1 Overtime rates for weekend work will be paid at the rate of time and one half of the ordinary hourly rate for the first two hours of engagement on Saturday and at double the ordinary hourly rate for any hours worked after the first two hours worked. Hours worked on Sunday will be paid at double the ordinary hourly rate for all hours worked.

## 7.4 Public Holidays

**7.4.1** Work on a gazetted Public Holiday shall be paid in accordance with the penalty rate structure provided in the Award.

#### 7.5 Payment of Wages

- **7.5.1** All wages and overtime shall be paid into the employee's bank account by EFT on a day to be determined by the employer. That day being fixed, it shall not be altered more than once in three months.
- **7.5.2** The employer shall take all reasonable steps (within its control) to avoid any late payment.

#### 7.6 Rest Period

**7.6.1** All employees engaged in continuous driving duties shall undertake two fifteen (15) minute or one thirty (30) minute unpaid break after the first four and before the first five hours of engagement. These hours and breaks shall be recorded/documented in accordance with Company Policy.

#### 7.7 Sick Leave

- **7.7.1** Sick leave will apply in accordance with the Award provided that in November of each calendar year an employee must notify the employer as to whether the employee wishes to:
  - a) Accumulate untaken sick leave; or
  - **b)** Be paid the cash equivalent of untaken sick leave and extinguish the accumulation.

In the absence of notification an employee will be deemed to have applied for the cash payment as per (b) above. This payment will be made in the first pay period following 1 December of each year.

All previously accrued sick leave will be preserved under the existing arrangements – only sick leave accrued after the signing of this agreement will be eligible for reimbursement.

7.7.2 All employees will be eligible to take two (2) non-consecutive sick leave absences each year without the requirement to provide a medical certificate (or statutory declaration in relation to illness of a relative or other matter requiring employees to

draw on their sick leave). Sick leave absences on a Public Holiday must be substantiated with a medical certificate or statutory declaration. Medical Certificates or statutory declarations are to be provided to the Supervisor within 5 working days of the end of absence. Failure to provide certification as described above will automatically attract a written warning.

#### 7.8 Annual Leave

- **7.8.1** Annual Leave will be rostered in consultation with the employees to assist the operational requirements of the business.
- **7.8.2** Without limiting the provisions of the Annual Leave Act 1944, employees will not be permitted to accrue in excess of twenty (20) days Annual Leave without the written permission of Collex Senior Management. Where an accrual does occur in excess of twenty (20) days the employee shall take leave as directed by the company to reduce the accrual to fifteen (15) days.

## 7.9 Long Service Leave

**7.9.1** After Long Service Leave becomes due, that entitlement must be taken within a two (2) year period. Where some or all long service leave is not taken within the 2 year period the employee shall take leave as directed and scheduled by the Company.

### 7.10 Emergency Call Out

7.10.1 Employees recognise they may be required to attend work in the event of an emergency (eg natural disaster). No reasonable request to attend to such an occasion will be refused. Callouts of this nature will be paid at overtime rates for a minimum of four (4) hours from the time an employee is notified they are required to attend such an emergency.

## 8. RATES OF REMUNERATION FOR EMPLOYEE TRANSPORT WORKERS

**8.1** The Company shall pay to employees covered by this as outlined in the Schedule of Rates, Attachment 1, to this Agreement.

#### 9. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

The parties have agreed that the following settlement of disputes procedure shall apply:

- i) The matter should first be discussed at the workplace level between transport workers and relevant management. If an employee so requests the TWU delegate will be involved in such discussions.
- ii) If the matter is not settled discussions shall occur between the appropriate TWU official, Delegate and management;
- iii) If the matter is still not settled it shall be discussed between the Branch Secretary (or nominee) of the TWU, Delegate and the Company;
- **iv)** If the matter is still not settled it shall be submitted to the Industrial Relations Commission of New South Wales which shall conciliate the matter;
- v) The Industrial Relations Commission of New South Wales may make a determination, which is binding on the parties where there is no likelihood that, within a reasonable period, conciliation or further conciliation will result in agreement.

- vi) Whilst the above procedure is being followed work shall continue normally, without bans, limitations, go slows or stoppages, except in circumstances where employees have genuine concerns for their health and safety. In the case of purported Health and Safety risks suitable measures will be taken to manage the risk without affecting any other aspect of the service delivery.
- **vii)** This settlement of disputes procedure will apply to any dispute or claim (whether it arises out of the operation of this Agreement or not) as to the wages or conditions of engagement of transport workers engaged by the Company.

#### 11 MEAL ALLOWANCE

- **11.1** Meal Allowance will be paid as prescribed in the Award.
- 11.2 Meal Allowances will not be paid for weekend work where the employee is working an overtime shift, i.e. A shift additional to their rostered days for that week.

#### 12 OPERATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall commence operation from the date of its registration by the IRC of NSW and remain in force for a period of three (3) years thereafter. Where this Agreement is silent the provisions of the Award shall apply.

#### 13 VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICY

It is the intention of the Company to retain the services of an appropriately qualified in house driver trainer/assessor. This role will form the foundation of any new vehicle accident policy, ensuring the Company through its driving personnel maintains the highest possible standards in road safety.

To assist in managing motor vehicle accidents and identify driver-training opportunities, the following process will be followed.

- The employee involved in any incident will be required to take a photo of the damaged vehicle or property and exchange details with the other party or leave suitable identification so that the Company may be contacted. The employee will be required to fill out a Vehicle Accident Form before the end of the shift on the day of the accident, if physically able to do so.
- ii) Each vehicle accident involving a Collex employee will be assessed by the Company on its merits. If a Collex employee is found to be at fault in a vehicle accident, then a warning may be issued (as per the Disciplinary Action Procedure), depending on the seriousness of the matter. The driver will also receive counselling and suitable driver training.
- iii) If a driver is found guilty of serious breaches of the law, resulting in loss of licence, the action taken by the Company will be at its discretion and includes termination (with no precedent).

#### 14 DISCIPLINARY ACTION PROCEDURE

Any employee breaching the provision of the EBA, the Award, Company Policy, or Legislation etc will be subject to disciplinary action. The extent of this action will fairly reflect the seriousness of each incident.

Written warnings will be given. Termination of employment may occur after a final written warning at the discretion of the Company. Nothing within this clause will prevent the Company terminating employment where gross or serious misconduct has occurred.

- ii) A third written warning is a final written warning. Serious misconduct may lead to a final written warning directly. Written warnings will include a period for which they are active, of not less than 1 year. Should an employee attract further disciplinary action after a final warning has been issued and during active period then the employee will, solely at the Company's discretion, be dismissed.
- iii) If a situation arises where an employee behaves recklessly or engages in conduct which potentially threatens the company's business then the company may issue the employee with a Final Warning or in the most serious of cases terminate the employment of the employee concerned.

#### 15 UNIFORMS

Work clothing will be issued annually and damaged clothing will be replaced on a new for old basis.

#### 16 OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS

Employees to the satisfaction of the Company shall undertake the following list of workplace and contract specific requirements.

- Employees must bundy on and off at the start and end of each shift respectively.
- ii) Employees will wear the uniform supplied by the Company.
- **iii)** Employees must contact the Supervisor at least one hour before the commencement of their shift if they are unable to attend due to illness or other reason. Annual Leave must be scheduled in agreement with the Company at least seven (7) days prior to commencement.
- **iv)** Drivers must comply with all road rules applying to heavy vehicles and the general public. Vehicles must be driven in a safe manner that avoids undue wear and tear.
- v) Employees will carry out all duties as reasonably directed by the Company.
- vi) All loads will be tipped prior to completing the shift as directed by the Supervisor.
- vii) All operations are to be undertaken in a manner that complies with relevant OH&S standards and that does not place any employee, customers or member of the general public at risk of injury. This includes wearing all necessary personal protective equipment.
- viii) Employees shall report safety concerns to the Supervisor.
- **ix)** Employees are to be courteous to other employees, customers and the general public and act in a manner that is deemed acceptable to the Company.
- x) All reporting and recording aspects of the Vehicle Accident Policy must be adhered to. No 'not at fault' motor vehicle accidents will be recorded against the employee.
- **xi)** Vehicle cabins must be cleaned and tidy prior to completing the shift. For vehicles manned with crews, this responsibility rests with the entire crew.
- **xii)** Trucks must be washed weekly or more frequently as directed. For vehicles manned with crews, this responsibility will rest with the entire crew. When a dedicated truck washer is available, this responsibility will rest with the truck washer.
- xiii) All collection containers are to be returned to the collection point after.

- **xiv)** All collections are to be made without loss or damage to customer's, resident or other third party owned property. Where an employee is responsible for causing damage, this is to be reported to the Supervisor and the necessary records completed before the end of the shift.
- **xv)** All drivers are required to complete a DVR report at the start and end of each shift respectively.
- All employees will maintain a reasonable level of productivity. Each work group and employee will have their level of productivity measured from time to time. Where the level of productivity is deemed by Collex Management, or employees, to be inadequate, the matter will be referred to a consultative committee comprising employee and management representatives, for further review and recommended actions. These actions may include transfer of duties or other remedial action.
- **xvii)** Employees are to take appropriate steps to contain any spill (using equipment supplied) and assist in cleaning up any remnants. Employees shall contact their supervisor immediately that a spill occurs.

#### Onboard Vehicle Monitoring & Bin Identification Systems (where fitted)

**xviii)** If Collex decides to implement an Onboard Vehicle Monitoring System or a Bin Identification System the employees will cooperate to ensure that such systems work effectively.

#### 17 CLOSED AGREEMENT

The parties agree that that there shall be no further claims for remuneration increases of any kind other than those detailed in Schedule of Rates whilst this agreement is in force.

#### 18 EXECUTION

Signed for and on behalf of COLLEX PTY LTD in the presence of:	) ) ) )
Signed for and on behalf of THE TRANSPORT WORKERS' UNION OF NEW SOUTH WALES in the presence of:	) ) ) )

Appendix 1				
Rates of Pay shall be increased as follows:				
From 15 September 2005	Weekly base rates will increase by 5%			
From 15 September 2006	Weekly base rates will increase by 5%			
From 15 September 2007	Weekly base rates will increase by 5%			

## Appendix 2

This appendix contains those historical work arrangements in the Rockdale contract that shall remain in effect for the duration of this agreement.

Following our meeting with yourself and the Rockdale delegates the following points are agreed:

After the recommendation to the yard by the delegates for acceptance and finalisation of the issues please have parties sign the agreement for payment to be made.

- 1. Payments of one hour of normal time daily to be paid to the three (3) single dwellings recycle drivers.
- 2. Recycle drivers may start at 3.30am with no increase in remuneration. Agreed start times must be adhered to otherwise revoked
- 3. Agreement to examine changes to the current EBA with any agreed amendments to occur within three months. Agreement that any increased costs to the company are to be offset by productivity increases.
- 4. Agreement on the figure of 25,013 for one-man garbage incentives. This figure to be reviewed annually. The company commits to the current payment of incentives to the one man garbage employees set at a minimum of 25,013 during the life of the current Industrial Instruments, the continued contract agreement with Rockdale Council remaining and ability of the employees to fulfil the current duties required in consultation with the TWU.

## MEMORANDOM OF UNDERSTANDING COLLEX/ROCKDALE CONTRACT

It is agreed between the parties as from 1 January 2004 the following will apply

- The current three recycling vehicles #210 #211 #601 will cut out the recycling run previously collected by #209
- Drivers will share the wages normally paid for this run, plus an additional 1 hour extra per day payment @ ordinary time. This equals 9 normal hours plus 1 hour extra = Total 10 hours

  To be divided as follows and paid as incentive.

#210 ordinary hours paid per day 9 plus 3 hours incentive = 12

#211 ordinary hours paid per day 9 plus 3 hours incentive = 12

#601 ordinary hours paid per day 8 plus 4 hours incentive = 12

- These payments will be in lieu of overtime payments provided **<u>current</u>** tipping arrangements and compaction rates remain at Visy Taren Point and Visy Alexandria
- Payment for loss of time caused by breakdowns or staff/truck shortage will be assessed on a daily basis

• This agreement remains for the term of the current contract

#### **Rockdale Incentive Payment**

Productivity Incentive 14/07/2004.

## This replaces the existing Clause 3.2 of the Appendix of 22<sup>nd</sup> September 1999 EBA Agreement.

The three rear loader crews operating on the garbage unit runs will be paid \$12,729 split evenly between the nine permanent operators. This will be paid evenly and as a lump sum between all and cover all payments to date.

In addition, an ongoing payment of \$13,200 per annum commencing 1<sup>st</sup> August 2004, will be shared between the three garbage crews until the end of the contract period to cover the current volumes and any increase in bin numbers that come into effect during this time. The payment of \$7.05 will be paid as a daily amount per man for each day worked on the unit garbage run on the day whether permanent or casual. The third man payment will be shared between the remaining two operators in the event of going two out.

This agreement ensures no change to current vehicle or manning levels for the rear lift garbage unit run covered by this agreement.

Run restructure for rearloaders on any day, including Wednesdays' will only be done with full agreement of both parties.

Signed:	Signed:	
Union Delegate	Collex Pty Ltd	
Date:	Date:	

#### 22<sup>nd</sup> September 1999

#### **APPENDIX**

WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION CONTRACTS for Rockdale Council area.

#### 1. JOB AND FINISH

All collection work will be carried out on a job and finish basis. Work will be allocated daily as per job descriptions. Once that work is completed, payment for a full day's work is due. The employee may then leave work unless reasonably required to do extra work as per 1 (iii).

Employees engaged on collection may be required to perform additional duties within the span of eight (8) ordinary hours but after their normal allocated collections have been completed. In these cases the employees will be paid at ordinary time rates within the eight (8) hour span provided however that:

- (i) Where extra collections are made by vehicles due to the absence of a collection vehicle, the collectors involved will share the wages which normally have been paid to the absent collection crew.
- (ii) Collectors who transfer from garbage to recycling or from recycling to garbage within any day will be paid overtime rates from the time of transfer
- (iii) Reasonable requests to accomplish extra work will not be refused.

#### 2. FLEXIBLE WORK PRACTICES

- 2.1 The parties agree that staff may operate equipment for the purpose of picking up or dropping off vehicles or assisting in the case of emergencies.
- 2.2 Property licensed and trained mechanics may drive vehicles for the purpose of either road testing or assisting operations if there is a labour shortage of drivers
- 2.3 There will be no demarcation lines other than those arising from individual levels of skill. The parties will work together to develop the skills required by employees of the business
- 2.4 All employees agree to accept a degree of job rotation:
  - a. to suit the needs of the business
  - b. to multi skill employees
  - c. to share incentive payments

The degree to which this job rotation occurs will be mutually agreed between the supervisor and employee representatives from time to time

2.5 Plans for double shifting of vehicles and employees may be negotiated from time to time and will be mutually agreed between the Supervisor and employee representatives. Employees agree to be rostered to suit the needs of the business with afternoon shiftworkers to receive an agreed addition to their remuneration.

#### 3. PRODUCTIVITY INCENTIVE

3.1 One man garbage collection vehicles will be paid 20c per bin collected over 860 bins per day. No additional overtime payments will be paid for work carried out above 8 hours per day for drivers in receipt of the productivity incentive. In instances where the completion of work is in excess of eight hours, the driver may request to be paid at overtime rates where the overtime payments exceeds the productivity payment.

#### 4. MISSED SERVICES

The following will apply for missed services:

- 4.1 If a non-presented bin is called in by the driver and the Council advise Collex of a missed service for that address, the driver will not be required to return to collect that bin on the same day.
- 4.2 If the Council advise Collex of a missed service and there is no record of non-presentation, the driver will be required to collect that bin the same day unless it is a known problem address which has been reported to the Council.
- 4.3 All reported missed services, whether it is the fault of Collex or the resident, must be collected by the next day and will be allocated to vehicles the next morning if they have not been picked up the same day.

#### 5. JOB DESCRIPTIONS

All drivers and runners will be issued with detailed job descriptions

#### 6. UNIFORMS

Five sets of work clothing will be issued on commencement of permanent employment or after 3 months of full time casual employment. The next issue of uniforms will be completed by 1<sup>st</sup> October, 1999. Further issue of uniform requirements will take place by 1<sup>st</sup> October each year. Damaged clothing may be replaced on a new for old basis.

A set of working clothes consists of one singlet, one shirt, one pair of tracksuit pants, one pair of shorts and one sloppy joe.

Two pairs of joggers will be issued upon commencement of permanent employment or after 3 months of full time casual employment and replaced on a new for old basis. Headwear for protection from the sun will also be provided.

## **7 SAFETY IN OPERATIONS**

All employees agree to operate in a safe manner at all times with particular respect to:

- a. their own personal safety
- b. the safety of their work team
- c. the safety of members of the community

Safety concerns must be reported to the Supervisor in the first instance and it is recommended that these concerns are also discussed with a member of the site Occupational Health and Safety Committee

#### 8. YARD MEETINGS

Informal regular yard meetings will occur to facilitate open communication between management and employees and to discuss operational issues.

These meetings will generally be held at the commencement of the day's operation. The designated start times for employees to attend these meetings may be altered with 12 hours notice.

#### 9. REFUELLING OF VEHICLES

......

Signed by the Co-delegate

The employees agree that if refuelling of ve day's run incurring no extra payment	ehicles is to be completed off site that it will be done as part of the
Signed by the delegate	Signed by Collex Management